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Natural History Society.

A hundred ye'ars ago, the city of St.
John was near its infancy and at the
commencement of things that tell for
growth, The province was still covered
with an almost unbroken line of forest.
Lumber shipments were just commenc-
ing. Masts and square timber were still
the staple exports. Foundries, factories
and workshops were awaiting the advent
of that great transforming agency,
steam power. Industries were still of the
archaic type of the handicraft order.
The dresses, the fashions and the modes
bore but a distant relation to those of
today. The eager faces that passed up
and down the strcets intent on the ac-
tivities of life, have been by Times’ ever
changing hand, returned to their mo-
ther earth—leaving here and there in the
old chiirch yards a few crumbling head-
stones as memorials of the existence of
that generation,

Nor you ye proud

Impute to these the fault

If memory oér those tombs trophies
raise,

Where thro’ the long drawn aisle and
fretted vault

The peali‘ng anthem swells the note of
praise.

We, who of today also want to carry
our names forward to another age, will
have to do something less commonplace
than chasing the almighty dollar like
children on a summer’s day flying after

. the elusive butterfly.

The' things they thought about and
what they talked about so far away
from us today shew the mutability of
human affairs, The heavy hand of
George 111, which the American Col-
onies had' flung aside, had ceased from
troubling in 1829, but for thirty-one
years previously his brain had been
clouded and the Prince of Wales as re-
gent reigned. Then the Mother Coun-
try was on the eve of great constitution-
al changes.® Here the personal adminis-
trationr established by Colonel Carleton
in 1784; was still in full vigor, and while
we possessed an elected* Assembly, the
people had little to say respecting public
affairs.

Then as now, the papers contained ac-
counts of the Greeks and Turks cutting
each others throats; then as now incen-
diarism, shootings, murders and such like
outrages prevailed in Ireland. The Yel-
low Fever raged in Spain. The great
Conqueror, Napoleon, had been over-
come a few months before by the last
Conqueror of all—Death, and his will
was published leaving six millions of
francs—one to the generals who remain-
ed his personal friends and five to' his
son, the King of Rome, who was never
to be King.

Shipbuilding.

New Brunswick had already entered
u that extraordinary career of wood-
en shipbuilding, that made St. John in
the sixties the fourth shipbuilding port
in the empire. Shipyards were estab-
lished along the Bay Shore and up the
rivers, in coves and creeks, anywhere to
be in contact with spruce and hacmactac
forests. Shipwrights multiplied by the
thousand until they and their families’
formed d large fraction of the population,
sailors and shipmasters grew proportion-
ately; their homes were to be found
everywhere along the coast within sight
of the sea. The outfitting and ship's
chandler’s shops in this city were centres
of activity and employed much capital.
New vessels in the docks with rigging
being fitted up and sails bent; old vessels
loading with lumber for Eiropean ports,
- or fish and produce for the West Indies,
or vessels in from sea unloading their
cargoes of sugar, molasses, rum, flour, or
European goods, was so familiar a sight
that the old expression a “forest of
masts” was literally true.

Lieutenant Coke visited the province in
1833 and says “four hundred square-
rigged vessels enter the port annually
and export more than one hundred thous-
and tons of square timber.”

The chantey song on the ebb-tide,
when the anchor was being raised for
outward bound vessels was rarely miss-

ing. Vessels were all sizes up to say,
2,000 tons, and their graceful lines, thciri
tall masts and drooping sails, suggesting |
so much the adventure and mystery of|
the sea, commenced in the sixties to be,

laced by huge iron hulks, in whose
cavernous depths all romance of the sea |
had vanished, and with it the wealth and
prosperity of the city took a downward
bound.

The vessels inward bound numbered
1,812, of 223,211 tons, being of about 184
tons each. There were no less than 262!
vessels on the registry books of the prov-!
fnce, averaging 110 tons each. One
week’s sailings show the course of trade
at that time. One with coal for New |
York; one with gypsum for Wiscasset;'
two with lumber for the West Indies and
five with timber for the United King-|
dom.

At a meeting of the merchants in Jan-'
uary, 1822, it was decided to ask for a|
bounty of two shillings per hhd. on salt,
and that provision be made for inspec-|
tion of fish. One obstacle to trade was
declared to be 6d. per gallon crown duty !
on rum. The shipping fees in West In-|
dia ports were deemed exhorbitant.

First Cargo of Deals.

The first, cargo of deals, 100,000 feet,
cut in 1819, was shipped to England in
1822. [This was a period of tremendous
expansion of trade. The great depres-
sion and hard times that set in after the
end of the Napoleonic wars being suc-
ceeded by a period of extreme prosper-

ity, which four years later (1826) gave
way to another period of hard times and
failures. The reacation after a period
of wild speculation, when bubble com-
panies in England had paralyzed indus-
try, reduced consumption and demoral- '
ized prices, much colonial timber was
sold for less than the freights, and num- |
bers of people were ruined. i

In the year 1821, 262,000 tons of
squared timber was exported, and 7,000
cords of lath wood; pine boards and
plank, 25,000,000 feet; staves, 6,000; |
shingles, 18,000 bundles; hand spikes, 5,
000. A great impelus was given thc;
lumber business by the action of Na-!
poleon in closing the Baltic ports fromn
trading with England, and mills were |
established at North Shore ports, on the)
St. Croix and St. John rivers. In 1820,!
Britain placed a duty of ten shillings
a ton on timber from British North
America, against two pounds, fifteen
This dis-
crimination operated as a protection to

ur lumber industry, but in 1828, the
_-.ritish government attempted to remove
LIl duties. Sir Howard Iouglas, then in
England, protested so vigorously in the

1

press and on the platform that, on a
vote being taken, the government was
actually dereated, wnrch they took 80
mach to heart that they deprived Sir
Howard for several years of his official
appointments. Later, however, all duties
were removed. Owing to the fluctua-
tions in prices as well as in freights the
business has always been more of a
gamble than a steady industry. Partl.y
from that cause and partly from this
source of wealth being utilized for politi-
ca] trading the people of the province
are today not enjoying the bepefit of
that splendid natural heritage whick
they had in their forests. The othcr
exports were 44,000 tons of gypsum, 2, |
000 grindstones and a large quantity of
fish. The latter consisted of 836 bar-
rels of salmon, 12,000 barrels of herring,
453 barrels of fish oil and 45,000 pounds
of dry fish. ; :

The imports—less exports during
during 1821 were 25,000 barrels of flour,
1,000 of bread, 38 of cornmeal, 3,000
of beef and pork, 168,000 gallons of mo-
lasses, 8.000 cwt. of sugar, 5,000 tons of
salt, 1,000 pounds of cut tobacco, 500
chests of tea, silk, woollen goods, iron
mongery, boots and shoes, cordage and
sail cloth, making 15,000 packages.

Liquor Business Large.

The liquor business loomed large, 555,-'
000 gallons of rum, 20,000 of brandy and |
gin and 11,000 of wine were imported for
home consumption—being abgut eight!
gallons per head of the population. In:
1838 the imports had been. reduced " to
376,000 gallons. The population was |
then about 120,000; consequently the con-
sumption per head was reduced to about '
three gallons per head. In 1921 it was
about one gallon per head. 'T'he hard-
ship and privations to which tne early
settlers and pioneers were subjected in-
vited the absorption of stimulants, while |
the social customs of the day encouraged |
their universal use. So general a cus-:
tom affected even the clerical profession.
An aged non-conformist minister of the'!
day alleged it was a wonder they were
not all drunkards. A minister of the !
gospel writing from Halifax at a period
anterior to this date stated that the -busi-
ness of onelhalf of the people was to sell
rum, the other half to drink it.

A leading politician of the period,
Iiieut.-Governor Franklin, started an ex-|
tensive barroom on the site of the Royal |
Bank, Halifax, oppesite the Provincial
Building, where he made a fortune, Tra-
dition says that to encourage trade al
workmen calling before 8 o'clock in the
morning were given a free drink.

In 1787 the city paid Charles Mac- |
Pherson, keeper of the coffee house £2:
for punch served to the purchaser of city
lots. At a celebration in 1801 for some
patriotic event the city hall and jail were
illuminated by candles, an ox was roast-
cd. which with other sundries, liguid and
otherwise, cost the city £56.

In those days the materia medica con-
sisted largely of salts and senna and rum.
The blue pill was intreduced in about
1830. Out of sixty charges a doctor in
the country made in his ledger fifty-five
were for rum, which served both as bev-
erage and as a medicine. In 1822 no less
than 155 tavern licenses were issued in1
this city and seventeen retail ones, bring- |
ing in a revenue of £645. The keeper of:
the jail had been granted £30 a year for/
dispensing with a bar in the jail, but|
this year the common council, being
*ten afflicted with their periodic fit of
economy, retrenched on this subsidy, al-
lowing the prisoners to drown their sor-
rows in the flowinx bowl.

Brutality Almost Exceeds Belief.

The brutality of that period almost ]
exceeds belief, so foreign it is to the hu-|
manity of modern conventions. The pil-'
lory was still a formidable machine for |
retributive justice. In 1819, John Corey |
was subjected to this punishment in the
market square and was duly pelted(with |
rotten apples and other objectionable
missiles. Whipping was also in order.
In 1820, one Johnston, convicted of steal-
ing three kegs of gunpowder was whip- '
ped at the end of the North Market
wharf. The age of flogging in the army :
and navy for even insignificant offences,
was still at its zenith. Civilians accus-
tomed to follow the fashion, flogged in
their schools and on all proper and im-
proper occasions. The stocks had often
their contingent of victims to be jeered
at and insulted by a rough crowd and
the whipping post was an institution of
authority. For garrotting and bodily
offences against women and children, it
has been abolished all too soon. Ruffi-
ans who hold human life in contempt
wince at the lash. In 1828, Patrick Bur-
gan, eighteen years old, was sentenced
to death and executed for entering the
house of John B. Smith, ginger beer
manufacturer, corner Union and Drury
Lane, and stealing a quarter of a dollar.
Rev, Mr. Milton wrote to the Countess
of Huntington respecting the trial, con-
demnation and execution of two men
by the name of Clark and Fitzgerald for
burglary. They were kept in irons in
a cell which from his description was
filthy and cold until their execution
which was no doubt a welcome relief, |
Hue and cry was an old country insti-‘
tution still preserved.

In 1822, one John Dunn having com-
mitted some offence in such case made

ged Since Then—The Story Told by

| was organized in 1810, with twelve mem-

}{iam; T. H. Harding,

i made for the first Grammar school in
i the province at St. John in 1805, by a

. yemr 1830 no

W. C. Mil-
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and provided, attempted to skip, when
a hue and cry after him was raised by
William Reynolds who received from
the city the sum of 7s.

The Clergymen of That Time.

At this date the Anglican clergy num-
bered sixteen only. Rev. Robert Willis,
being rector of St. Jochn, and Rev. Abra-
ham Wood bhis assistant. The Estab-
lished Church of Scotland had only one
representative in the province—Rev. Dr.
Burns. The Roman Catholic church was

represented by three priests, Rev. Joseph
Morisset, St. John; Rev. Andrew 'I'.|
Legard, Indian Village, and Rev. Isadore
Porier, Memramcook. The Methodist
church in the province had three minis-
ters, Rev. Mr. Croscombe in St. John,
and one each in Charlotte, up the river,
and in Westmorland. At the first Bap-

 tist association of which there is any

record was held in 1809, at Sackville.
Prince William, Waterbury and Petitco-
diac, were the only places represented in
this province, with a membership of 172
persons.

The early records of the Baptist
church, like those of the rector of 'I'rin-
ity church, were destroyed by fire. It

bers, Rev. E. J. Rice officiated for two
years. St. John was adlded in 1813, with
a membership of twenty-seven, and a
place of worship obtained.

In 1817, Rev. Thomas Griffin came.
A church had been erected, but it in-
volved a considerable debt, which Mr.
Griffin was largely instrumental in re-
moving in subscriptions from the United
States. He left for Philadelphia in 1819.
In 1819 the only ordained ministers were
the two Mannings, Edward and James,
Thomas Ansley, Elisha Estabrooks,
Lothop Hemmeon, John Burton, Thomas
H. Chipman, Nathan Cleveland, Peter
and Joseph Crandall, David Harris and
Joseph Dimock. Y

The pastors throughout province were
in 1821: Rev. William Tingley, Sackvilie;
Joseph Crandall, Salisbury ; David Curry,
Waterbury; L. Hammond, Prince Wil-
Fredericton; Fran-
cis Pickle, Norton; Nathan Cleveland,
Hopewell. /

The denomination grew rapidly, so
that in 1822, New Brunswick was sepa®
rated from Nova Scotia and became an
independent association, and six years
later, 1828, an educational society was
formed which became the forerunner of
Acadia College.

Education.

/ The College of New Brunswick—now
the University, had been instituted, with
the rather meagre staff of Rev. James
Somerville, president, and D. B. Shelton,
tutor. The governors or trustees were
all members of ‘the council with two
outside appointments, Peter Fraser, Esq,
and Rev. Raper Milner. Provision was

yearly grant £100—and also for county
schools, but it was not until 1823, an
act was passed for the establishment of
parish schools, providing aid to teachers.

Society In England, it came under the
guidance of ministers of the Church of

i

England. It gradually fell into disfavor
and was finally abandoned.
The River Traffic,

Fifteen years previously Fulton con-
structed the first steamboat to navigate
the Hudson River. The world moved
swiftly even then for seven years later
the first railway train was run and the
next year saw the first twenty miles of
railway track laid.

Trade and transportation to up bay
ports and across the bay to Digby and
Windsor were performed in small
schooners until the advent of steam. In
1786, the schooner Four Sisters, per-
formed weekly trips between Indian
House and Fredericton. !

The first steamer on the route was)
the “General Smythe,” conimencing in)
1816, making round trips twice a week,
leaving St. John Mondays and Thurs-
days, and Fredericton Wednesdays and
Saturdays. The fare was 22s. 6d., which
included breakfast and dinner. The ad-
vertisement is signed by Hugh John-
ston, John Ward, Peter Fraser, James
Fraser, L. Donaldson, Robert Smith and
J. C. F. Bremner.

Farmers along the river used their
own boats to bring produce to market
—sharp at both ends, equipped with a
mainsail and jib, and fitted with a lit-
tle cuddy forward. At the same time
there came into use the famous wood
boat, said to be built like Noah’s Ark,
because they used it to gopher wood.
The packet service existed between St.
John and Digby, subsidized both by
the governments of Nova Scotia and
New Brunswick for £150 each. A brisk
trade was kept up with Eastport—even
during the war of 1812.

Wilmot and Peters about 1822 or 1823

OLD TRINITY CHURCH. |

One of the earliest church buildings erected in St John. It stood on the
same site now occupied by the present church.

é

put on a boat on the river operated by
horse ‘power, like a bark mill. h(]olt:qd
Hayward, who was admiral of the ship, city ! A

. s y ordinance against fast galloping
i;::: ol?ora;ets)mi:icg?tCk:f‘g\:hi‘gl'\lgw“;:p u(:;:flr | thraugh the streets, lanes and alleys, and
four in a shift. It was not commercially | °¢ against hogs being allowed to l‘\}’"
a success and was abandoned. The ves- at large. Many chapters could be wril-
sel served one winter as a bom:ding house | t‘in about the old coaching days and the
at Salmon River. Vessel captains are al- | (lleit":rlxsd "v"v};‘i‘;ee l;el‘::'jngf w}le(l);zize W:;g
ways glad to pass a bar but this vessel | given the passing traveller.

took the bar with her right up to her{™ Ay o100t the notables in th das
water’s destination. The next summer | & e Dotables in those day

holding them together. There was a

n was Uncle Bill Williams. He was or-
she was reduced in rank to an humble iginally employed in the saw mill o o
carrier of fire-wood. |

“General Ward” was put on the Fivert oy
in 1821, the “St. George” in 1825.

But while the
American and French privateers abound- | Indiantown and St. John, and at the
cd in the Bay of Fundy and were CaP-|ggme time engaged in the transportation

r the site now occupied by the Inter-
colonial railway station.

tured in large numbers by our own VeS| of freight between St. John and Fred--

cels, brought into St. John' and sold. ! erjeton. His route was by the ice dur-
Several of these vessels were purchasec !ing the winter and the mails were &rans-
for river traffic, which before the steam—| ported by the Nerepis on horseback,
boat era was conducted altogether by | there being no wagon road between St.

by Hon. Ward CKipman which stood

e Later he put'
British held the coast| n the first public conveyance between

An act passed in 1833, provided for the
appointment by the sessions of three
trustees. This act granted £20 for all,
male, and 10 for female teachers. The.
teachers judged by modern standards
were vastly inefficient, but they possessed |
one merit, they taught the three R’s—
an English foundation so much neglected
by those of today who strain- after higher
education to the neglect of the rudi-
rudiments. °

The Public Grammar School at St.
John was under Mr., James Paterson,
who for over forty years pounded learn-
ing into the youths of the city. Madras !
schools had been ‘instituted throughout
the PBrovince in 1819. The St. John
teachérs at first were Mr. and  Mrs.
Bragg, and Mr. Till, for children of
color. The next was Mr. Truro, who
was trained in the Madras or nattonal
system (sometimes termed the Bell or|
Lancaster system), at the central school |
established in Halifax in the year 1816, |
by a Mr. West who had been especially |
sent out from London for the purpose
by the British National Education so-*
ciety. Mr. Truro made his first essay
as a teacher in the neighborhood of
Richibucto, where he taught the chil-
dren on week days and their parents on
Sundays—a busy man! He accepted the
charge of the national school at St. John,
entering upon his duties in the year
1822. The post was an important one
there being some 500 boys under his
charge. The responsibility thus assum-
ed did not however deter Mr. Truro
from assuming another by his marriage
in 1822 to a widow lady, Mrs, Anne Bell
Elliott, who had three sons, John, Wil-
liam and Sizar. Sizar Elliott as the son
of a school master he wrote in after
years that of having some 150 to 200
quill pens to make or mend after school
hours every day. Mr. Truro filled his
position for about fifteen years. His
wife at one time presided over the girl’s
department, in which there were in the
less than 116 enrolled
pupils.

‘The curriculum adopted was “Reading,
writing, cypering and geography.” The
principle adopted in their schools was
selection of senior stidents as monitors
to teach the younger pupils. It was a
¢ree school system; while supported by
both the government and the National

NORTH SIDE OF KING SQUARE.

A street scene in old St. John
buildings,

before the great fire swept away the earlier
some of which were built nearly a ceatury ago-

| John she was overtaken by a gale,

t

sloops. The Minerva, owned “by Cap-
tain Segee, and plying between St. John
and Fredericton, was a captured priva-
teer, and Jamgs Drake ran another of
these schooners or sloops called the
“Martin” on the river and over to Grand
Manan, where he did a big fishing busi-
ness.

The ¢teamer “Tom Thumb” went on
the American route in 1824, and the
“American Eagle” at a later date. The
“Wellington,” a packet schooner owned
by Noah Disbrow, was pioneer vessel
on the New York route. The first
steamer on the St. John-Digby route was
the steamer “St. John,” which had both
sails and steam, sometime in the twen-
ties. The steamer “Caroline” at a later

date met a tragic fate. She was owned
by Joseph. Crawley of Digby who ran
a general store there. On a trip to St
which
drove her off her course up the bay, she
went ashore on Isle Haut and all on
board were lost, The International |
Steamship Company did not put on their |
fine boats until 1860, In 1848, the Small |
and Hatheway firm was first heard from.
Mr. T. W. Hatheway built the “Forest
Queen” at Spring Hill and put her r)nl
the St. John route. The steamer “Henri-
etta” commenced plying between St.
John and Digby in 1881. The year after,
the first coal was brought from Gran

i Lake by two steamers, the “Arostook”

and the “J. Ward.” The first steamer
to pass the Meductic rapids and reach
Woodstock, was the steamer “Novelty”
in/ 1837. Enoch Lunt’s career as a
steamboat builder and manager did not
commence until 1840,

The St. John river above Grand Falls
was navigated before 1815, by the steam-
er “Madawaska.”

The same year the steamer Raindeer |
was put on the Woodstock-Grand Falls
route. The steamer Creole, that” was’
purchased by Small and Hatheway in
1850, was run on the Portland route un-
til 1852, when they sold her to King
Brothers. Meeting with an accident she
sank in the bay while being towed to
St. John. She had a history—In 1851,
she carried Major-General Lopez with
about five hundred men from New Or-
leans to Cuba, to overturn the Spanish
government. They landed north of Ila- '
vana, and after two or three successful
engagements were dispersed into, the
mountains, the people refusing to join
them. Lopez was captured by the Span-
iards and suffered death by the garoite.,
A Tragedy of the River. !

Very few steamboat accidents have
occurred on the River St. John. On Nov.
16, 1863, the steamer Sunbury burst her
boiler. Part of the boiler went through
the boat below the water-line. She sank
in thirty: feet of water in a few minutes,
only the paddle boxes were to be seen.
Nine persons were either killed or

| drowned.

"T'he steamers did not run off the wood
boats. A resident on the Long Reach
has given evidence they were so numer-,
ous on the river he has counted forty |
of them sailing either up or down at
one time. The slips were crowded with |
them, arriving with their cargoes of |
wood or farm produce. The South
wharf was not completed until 1838,
until which time it was possible to walk
oni the beach from Reed’s point to the
Market square. In those days the busi-
ness in the city was concentrated at the
North and South wharf, Market square
and Water street, down to the old fish
market—the name given to the slip at
the foot of Duke street.

Land Transportation.

In the absence of steam or electric
cars locomotion was by foot or on horse-
back; women on pillions was a ‘common
sight. Saddle horses were almost uni-
versal for fifty years later. Two wheel
chaises in the absence of any carriage
factories were imported, and the half
made roads and streets did not encour-
age their use. The first four wheel car-
riage ever used was imported by Ed-
ward Sands. It was an English pheaton.
It was utilizeq for the mail stage be-
twieen St. John and Kingston. In 1820,
the manufacture of carriages was com-
menced by a Mr. Peterson. He was|
followed by Samuel Skinner. In the
early days before the trails permitted
she use of wagons, panniers———similar to
what were used by the Indians on the
plains—permitted the transportation of
such freight as could not be packed on
horse back, This was two long poles at-
tached to a horse much like shafts, which
dragged at the lower end, & cross piece

. —by open fireplaces.

John and the capital. At a later date
Mr. Williams became the proprietor of
the coach line between St. John and
Fredericton., Mr. Williams was inter-
viewed on one occasion. He said, “we
dined at Robert Golding’s at Long Ts-
land, on our way up and at Mrs. Til-
ley’s (she was the grandmother of Sir
Leonard) at Gagetown on our way
down. My coaches accommodated eight
to ten passengers comfortably and I
had sixty horses, part of which were on
the St. Andrews route, which then was
under my control. At the time of the
Aroostook war, I had a contract with
the government for the conveyance of
the officers of the army between St.
John and Fredericton. The St. John
Hotel at the head of King street and
Atherton’s at Fredericton, were our
headquarters.” In the old days the win-
ter road to Fredericton lay across the
Marsh bridge, thence out the Westmor-
land road past the burying ground,
whence it turned a sharp angle to the
left, striking the marsh near the One
Mile House, then to Poverty Hill, which
stood near where the stone house known
as the McGowan house was situated.
Thence the route lay across the Kenne-
beccasis bay.

Social Life of St. John.

The social life of St. John was enliv-
ened by an amateur theatre in Cody’s
large room, where the tragedy of Doug-
las was played, Miss Powell acting as
Lady Randolph. St. Patrick’s Day was
celebrated by a dinner at Cody’s, tickets
2s. 6d. On the 22nd April St. George’s
Society celebrated the day also by a din-
ner- at Cody’s; the young folks were
taught music and dancing by Mr. A.
Kirk.

Primitive Heating.

Otur grandfathers kept their houses
warm—or speaking more correctly, cold
Usually the kit-
chen, dining room and parlor were one
apartment and the blazing logs gave a
welcome on a winter’s night when the
blast from the Arctic regions beat
against the doors and windows. Soumex
times other rooms were also heated hy
open fireplaces. The Dufferin Hotel and
the Hatheway House in Coburg strect,
built a century ago—each shows the old
fireplaces in the upper chambers. Parlor
and Franklin stoves were advertised in
Halifax as early as 1782. In the old bar-
racks ab Annapolis Royal, I have counted
thirty-six large open firepiaces. Thes

consumed a tremendous quantity of wood.

The chief employment of the people
during the winter was to keep warm !
The fireplace was also the cooking stove
Hinged to the right jamb was an iron
crane filled with dangling pot hobks for
pots and kettles. Potatoes were baked
in the hot ashes. . In the wall alongside
of the fireplaces was built the brick oven
with a flat bottom gnd arcied top and
an iron door. On baking days a woca
fire was built inside the oven, when

heated the coals were removed and the

pans of bread put in.

Churches were not heated. Foot stoves
were used. These were six inches square,
in which live coals were placed.

EAST SIDE OF KING SQUARE.

These 1

were placed in metal casings and car-
ried by “tails.” It was not until 1836,
that the Atwater stove—of cast iron
and mica, enclosed flues, a check flue and
a 'direct draft damper came in Bush-
nell’s cylinder stove with inside lined
with fire-clay, with a return heating ap+
paratus arrived a little later. Anthra-
cite coal was not in useiin the United
States in 1822. The fireplace as a gooker
was succeeded by a tin reflector, which
cooked by radiant heat. The Conant
stove invented in ‘1819, gradually dis-
"placed the fireplace. It was a double iron
box, the lower for fire, the upper for an
oven. 'This formed the basis for

' cooking stoves.

In these days cooking for the family
was but a slight part of the housewife’s
duties. They were manufacturers of |
domestic homespuns fro their families; it
was only the monied people who could |
import broadcloths, silks, satins, and vel- |
vets. The story has come down of a
Mr, Northrup of Falmouth, Nova Scotia,
who represented his township in the as-
sembly. *

He was intensely proud of a suit of
homespuns made by his wife from wool
from /the sheep’s back, which he took
to Halifax when he attended the as-
sembly—with other members he was in-
vited to Government House. After the
gevernor received them, he turned to
Mr. Northrup and asked, casting a
gldnce at the blue suit:—*“What consti-
tuency do you, sir, represent?” “Fal-
mouth, Your Excellency.” “Could they
not find a more fit and worthy repre-

11817, on the corger

104th, left on the 11tk February, 1813,
on its famous winter march for Quebec
to protect the frontiers -from attack;
two years later: the war office ordered
the disbanding of the New Brunswick
Fencibles, which had been recruited by
General Coffin.  St. John still remained
one of those military posts spoken of by
Webster, whose morning drum beat fol-
lowing the sun and keeping company
with the hoyrs encircles the whole world
with martial airs of England. Coffin’s
recruits were replaced by the 74th, the
colonel of which was Lieut.-General
James Montgomerie and the Lieut.-Col-
onel, Sir R. French, K. C. B, both of
whom were absent on other duties. Ma-
jor R. Mein was in command at St.
John, and Captain Jones at St. An-
drews. The governor was Sir George
Stacey Smyth. The adjutant-general
was the Hon. George Shore. Andrew
Phair was barrack-master at Frederic-
ton and John Chaloner his assistant at
St. John. Dr. Boyle was surgeon.

The Newspapers. :

The newspapers of the day were re-
markable for their scarcity of local
news. About half of them was occupied
with advertising and the other half with
foreign news clipped from papers re-
ceived by the last packet, and they
added but little to the gaiety of the
nations. ' The “Courier,” established by
H. Chubb and Cox, had been in existence
for eleven years and lived' for half a
century or more. The “City Gazette,”
published by William Durrent & Co.,
had an existence of some years, as had
also the “Commercial Intelligence.” Ow-
ing to the lack of postal facilities, these
papers had very slight circulation
through the province and people in the
country districts were indebted for in-
formaticn as to the activities of the great
world beyond, to the circuit rider, the
pedlar with his pack, the itinerant shoe-
maker or tailor, but as the Loyalists se-
lected their settlements chiefly along the
rivers or streams or the coastal line, they
had their trading sloops and schooners,
which were carriers of letters as well as
news.

The first City Hall was on Market
square, two stories—the west end of it
was a general store. The east side was
used as a City Hall and the upper floor
was used by the courts and council
chamber. This wad built by the Loy-
alists when they landed and stood until
'1887, when a brick building replaced it.
Four years after a fire 'destroyed the
brick building.

The, first brick house was erected in
of Germain and
Church streets. It was occupied in later
days by Dr. Ring and destroyed in 1877.

Early Hotels,

Tne New Victoria . Hotel in King
street was formerly the Waverly House,
the leading hotel in'St. John fifty years
ago. It was originally the site of the
mansion and gardens of Stephen Wig-
gins, and after’the fire of 1849 was re-
built and run as a hotel, first by James
Williams and then by Joseph Scammell,
who for many years had conducted the
St. John Hotel on the corner opposite
and in 1863 John -Guthrie became its
proprietor. In 1822 Cody’s, at the cor-
ner of King and Market square, was the
hotel of the day. It was later on suc-
ceeded by the St. John Hotel at the cor-
ner of King and King square, from
which the mail stages ran.

sentative?” next propounded His Excel-
lency. “Oh, yes, Your Excellency, but
nobody with such good clothes as I
have!” This closed the debate.

There was no water supply and mo
sewerage at this time. Wells, supplied
water. It was carried around to the
houses and sold by the pailful. It was
not until 1832, ‘that a water company '
was formed and at the same time a
Board of Health, The streets were not
lighted except for lanterns which were
hung out from houses on poles. Tra- |
velling on dark nights through the un-
paved streets with surface drains on
either side was not a pleasant experi-
ence. A constable was elected for every
ward, They carried black staves six
feet long, tipped with brass and were
called tip-staffs, The night watchman
was called a bell-man. He looked out
for fire and thieves and called out the
time of the night and the weather.

The sporting instincts of the people
were early developed. In 1819, a great
boat race took place from Reed’s Point
around Partridge Island and return.
| The whole population turned out to see
|it. The first prize, £25, was won by
| Mr. Leavitt’s boat, rowed by six men in
forty-one  minutes. Communication
with the West Side was maintained by
boats and scows until 1840, when the
steam ferry-boat “Victoria,” Captain
Vail, was put on.

A Military City,

In 1822, St. John was much more of
a military city than it is today. Red
coats and bear-skin caps lent color and
life on the streets and the military ele-
ment led in the social life of the city.
At this period, the old barracks stood
at Coupe’s Corner, Portland. A rendes-
vous for soldiers was situated nearly
opposite the present site of St. Luke’s
church. It was called the Monkey
House, Material was then collected for
the new barracks at Lower Cove.

The barracks at Fort Howe had been
nearly destroyed by fire in 1819. The
new barracks, built of stone, were con-
structed by Mr. Cody, an enterprising
citizen who was proprietor of Cody’s
coffee house. These barracks were de-
stroyed by the fire of 1877.

It was not until 1823, that the doors,
window sashes, hooks and hinges, chim-
ney and grate bars, bricks and boards
I of the old Fort Howe barracks, then re-
cently pulled down, were sold at auc-
tion.

The New Brunswick Regiment, the
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The old court house shown at the

fire but was burned a few years ago.
earlier days in St. John.

feft of the picture -escaped the great

Dufferin Hotel site has a history. The
lot was drawn by Thomas Mallard ~nd
sold to Thomas Horsfield for £5 6s., who
sold it to the Mechanics’ Association.
The latter erected a city handmill for
grinding corn. This proving a failure it,
with its'equipment, was sold in 1808.
The next year it served as a barracks
and in 1819 was destroyed by fire. In
1821 Dr. Thomas Paddock built his fine
residence there. Nine years later he sold
it to R. F. Hazen for £2,200.

Matters Political,

At this date the legislative and execu-
tive councils formed one body of twelve
members, all appointments as well as
the disposal of the public revenue being
vested in them. The house of assembly
was free to enact laws, which might or
might not be assented to by the coun-
cil. At this period two of its members
were of the Bliss family, Chief Justice
Jonathan and Judge John M.; William
Black, who became administrator later
on and was then winding up his business
at St. John; John Robinson, Samuel
Denny Street, Anthony Lockwood, who
was also surveyor and receiver-general;
General John Coffin, Ward Chipman,
who was also judge of the supreme
court; Judge John Saunders, . George
Leonard and Christopher Billop consti-
tuted the council’and were the rulers of
the province. W. F. Odell was clerk.
William Botsford, later on a judge of
the supreme court, succeeded his father,
the first speaker of the house of as-
sembly. Henry Peters and Hugh John-
ston, jr., represented the city and Ward
Chipman, jr., Andrew S. Ritchie, John
M. Wilmot, the father of Lieut.-Gover-
nor Duncan Wilmot, and Charles
Symonds, the county. The attorney-gen-
eral twas Thomas Wetmore, who did not
have a seat in either branch; the soli-
citor-general was Speaker Botsford. The
business of the province had expanded
in thirty years from the days of the
Loyalists when Elias Hardy was the
only attorney, to twenty-two lawyers in
the province.

In St. John the attorneys were two
Peters—C. J. and W. P.; Robert Parker,
jr., afterwards judge; Ward Chipman,
jr., BE. J. Jarvis, J. T. Murray and Ww.
B. Kinnear. Westmorland and Albert
counties had only two, William Botsford
and Hon. James S. Morse, of Amherst.
The attorneys at St. Andrews were:—
H. Hatch, H. Swymmer and Neville
Parker, later on chief justice. Henry
Wright was collector of customs, and
Robert - Parker, comptroller, both im-
perial officials. Hon. John Robinson,
with officers at various ports, collected
the provincial revenue—there being at
that date two sets of customs officials,
one remitting to London, the other to
Fredericton. The tariffs were low, so
the importers and consumers had little
to complain of.

The Union Fire Club had thirty-four
members, headed by Messrs. Daniel
Leavritt, and ,Leveret H. DeVeber, or-
ganized, they stated, “for the general and
their own particular good.” They were
furnished with lanterns, baskets, bed
screws, screw-drivers and large bags,
which they carried with them to fires.
They wore white hats with the letters
“Uttion Fire Club” painted on them. In
addition there werc four engine com-
panies, with David Waterbury as chief
engineer. His pay was £20.

William Wanton, collector of customs,
died in 1816, aged eighty-two. He was
succeeded by William Campbell, who
was also mayor of the city and post-
master. He died in 1823,

The mails closed for Halifax every
Tuesday at sunset, and for Fredericton
and Quebec every Wednesday.

Civic Officers in 1822, .

Kings ward—Stephen Humbert, aider-
man; Richard Lawrence, assistant al-

Its walls still stand as a remin of

derman. \
Queens ward—Noah Disbrow, alder-




